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PIONEER 
ENERGY 
PERFORMANCE 
OVERVIEW

*Includes the EBITDAF from Partnerships. 

T O T A L  R E V E N U E

79.4M
Increase of $14.4m or 22% from the same period last year

2 0 1 6  D I V I D E N D

8.6M
Increase of $1.6m or 25% from the same period last year

N E T  S U R P L U S

8.1M
Decrease of $2.8m or 25% from the same period last year

E B I T D A F *

16.8M
Decrease of $1.6m or 8% from the same period last year

BEFORE TAXATION AND GAINS / (LOSSES) ON DERIVATIVES
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Acquisitions of Energy for Industry (EFI) 
in 2012 and ECOsystems in 2015 set 
the scene for Pioneer’s programme of 
diversification. The 5 Year Strategy Plan 
approved early 2015, further developed 
Pioneer’s business model, by introducing 
investment partnering and specialist sales 
and service JV channels to the enterprise 
growth model.

New leadership, changes to organisational 
functional lines, a desire for an inclusive 
‘one Pioneer’ business combined with a 
programme of culture change that covered 
core process, health and safety, leadership 
development and people performance 
management required a simplified branding 
that aligned core service functions and the 
new investment partnering model which 
had been adopted.

OUR BRAND  
NEW BRAND
Pioneer Energy is a fast adapting vertically 
integrated energy business, developing at  
a significant pace relative to its history  
and prior business model.
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Key Branding 
Decisions   
Management and staff worked 
together on key branding decisions 
that supported the organisational 
and market growth changes.  
Eventually deciding to keep the 
“Pioneer” brand name but drop 
“Generation” – replaced with 
a lowercase “energy”. Therein 
modernising the look and feel and 
achieving a more recognisable 
national energy brand.

Four core values were developed to underpin the Pioneer Energy brand.

• Trust - earned through how we partner with co-investors and customers,  
 and is measured by the quality of our business relationships. 

• Service - delivered to customer segments, where our services are valued highest.   
 Limited Partnership management services, wholesale and retail customer    
 services delivery. 

• Guardianship – includes generation assets and extends to local resource    
 stakeholders, our management and mitigations measured by our performance   
 against accepted standards, accreditations and certifications.  

• Community - includes Central Lakes Trust and Central Otago community ownership  
 but extends to our partnering relationships with other regional stakeholders,  
 partner investors and target customer segments in the Institutional sectors of   
 hospitals, universities, local government and councils. 
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EBITDAF decreased by $1.6million (8%) 
compared to FY15. This was due mainly to 
a reduction in the price of electricity having 
a negative impact on the revenue of the 
generation division. The result was further 
impacted by transaction costs for acquisitions 
totalling more than $700k. The benefit of these 
acquisitions will come in future years. The 
negative impacts on the EBITDAF result were 
partially offset by the benefit of capitalising 
expenses relating to the development of 
the Flat Hill Wind Farm (these costs were 
previously recorded as an operating expense).

The gain on sale of assets during the  
FY16 year primarily related to Pioneer 
developing and selling operating assets to 
the Southern Generation Partnership. These 
transactions establish the foundation for 
Pioneer to continue to take development  
risk on new assets and sell them into our  
partnered businesses. 

The financial results for the year to 31 
March 2016 are the first presented that 
include Pioneer’s investment in the Limited 
Partnerships. The Consolidated Income 
Statement include Pioneers share of the Net 
Surplus of the Partnerships of ($323k); the 
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 
includes Investments in Joint Ventures 
($41.6million).

Northington Partners completed the biennial 
independent valuation based on the financial 
position at 31 March 2016. The key outcomes 
from the valuation:

• Enterprise Value - $207.5million   
 (2014: $182.2million); an increase  
 of $25.3million (14%) 

• Equity Value - $136.9 (2014: $124.5million);  
 an increase of $12.4million (10%).    

Pioneer has continued to deliver sound financial 

results for the year to 31 March 2016, including 

a dividend payment of $8.6m, $1.6m above the 

prior year. Earnings were again underpinned by the 

generation and heat divisions, with further revenue 

growth experienced in the retail division.

FINANCIAL 
HIGHLIGHTS

Fastest growing mature business —
Otago and Lower South Island

Pioneer was again honoured 

to be recognised as the  

fastest growing mature 

business in Otago and the 

Lower South Island 2015. 
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The total annual returns (including 
dividends and equity value) to the Central 
Lakes Trust for the financial years ended 
31 March 2015 and 31 March 2016 were 
9.6% and 10.8% respectively.

During the year the Group negotiated a 
new three year bank facility agreement 

with BNZ and ASB. The new facility 
commenced in April 2016. The 
combination of the new bank facility, 
issue of $25 million of new redeemable 
preference shares and sound working 
capital were the key to financing 
acquisitions during the last 12 months.

Market Risk Management
The price paid for electricity can vary significantly from month 
to month and year to year due to factors such as climate 
conditions, customer demand and market constraints. Market 
Risk Management has the objective of implementing a strategy  
to ensure Pioneer and its partners have a high degree of  
certainty of its earning from electricity sales.

Market Risk Management executes this strategy by entering 
into hedge contracts with third parties, including the ASX, to 
fix wholesale electricity prices into the future. Refinement of 
process continued to not only ensure policy compliance, but  
also support the continued development of policy guidelines  
in an ever changing business and market environment.

Revenue by DivisionShareholder Return (%)

Generation 25%

Heat 18%

Retail 51%

Wind 3%

Other 3%
0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

9.6%

10.8%

12.0%

FY2015 FY2016

Dividend Return

Capital Returns
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CHAIRMAN AND 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 
REPORT

Fraser Jonker,

Chief Executive - Pioneer Energy

Stuart Heal,

Chairman - Pioneer Energy

Our growth and diversification strategy has 
taken us to a new level during the 15/16 year 
and continue to make the business more 
resilient in the ever increasingly complex, 
competitive and challenging energy market. 
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We combined this strategy with the 
establishment of long term strategic 
partnerships to give us access to 
diversified growth options we could  
not execute on our own. The acquisition 
of  the 127GWh Aniwhenua scheme is  
a good example of this partnered  
growth strategy. 

The Southern Generation Limited 
Partnership formed on 1 April 2015, has 
shown rapid growth and at year end 
secured circa $150m of renewable wind 
and hydro investments. We specifically 
wish to recognize the contribution made 
by our Southern Generation investment 
partners, The Power Company and 
Electricity Invercargill, enabling us to 
take advantage and secure high quality 
renewable generation investments, 
diversified across wind and hydro and 
across New Zealand.

Our customer growth strategy also had 
a step change with Pioneer taking a 
51% shareholding in Pulse Energy and 
then forming the Pulse Energy Alliance 
with Buller Electricity holding the other 
49% share. With Pulse now serving 
more than 55,000 customers across the 
country, the investment enables Pioneer 
access to immediate scale in mass 
market retail. Combine this with our 
partnered investment (49%) in Ecotricity, 
New Zealand’s first and only supplier 
of CarboNZero certified electricity 
products, we believe we have a good 
diversified mass market energy brand 
base enabling continued growth in  
this space.

Our growth plans in Christchurch were 
less successful, but we did however 
form an investment partnership with 
French company Engie as we secured 

a first stage investment at the King 
Edward Barracks to get the district 
energy scheme concept underway. A 
major opportunity, and real value add 
to the Christchurch community, at the 
Christchurch Hospital was however lost 
through political intervention in a very 
complex Christchurch re-development 
environment.

We continue to build the core Pioneer 
business as developer, asset owner and 
manager and specialist bundled energy 
supplier. As developer/asset owner, we 
successfully completed the new Flat Hill 
wind farm at Bluff (sold to the Southern 
Generation Limited Partnership on 
completion), upgraded the 53 year old 
Fraser turbine for improved efficiency 
and reliability and completed a new 
dryer facility on our Winstone Pulp site at 
Ohakune. Our refocused energy solution 
business offering bundled energy 
products to targeted larger commercial, 
institutional and industrial customers 
proves to be successful with solid 
growth shown. The electricity portion 
of our customer book now exceeds our 
generation production.

Financially Pioneer 
continues to deliver 
strong consistent 
results in a highly 
volatile energy 
market environment.

We continue to be in a position to 
support our shareholder with strong 
dividend flows and increasing the 
value of their investment. Over the last 
2 financial years (since the previous 

independent valuation) Pioneer delivered 
total annual returns (including dividends 
and equity value) to our shareholder of 
9.6% and 10.8% respectively.

Given the regulatory risks associated 
with the TPM/ ACOT proposals by the 
Electricity Authority, we will not be in a 
position to continue with our pipeline of 
new renewable generation investments 
until we have more certainty on the final 
outcome of these proposals. We will 
however continue to grow our energy 
solutions and partnered retail businesses 
and focus internally to become more 
efficient and further improve our asset 
management systems to create more 
value from existing assets as well as 
improving our service offering to our 
partnered investment businesses.

We must thank the Central Lakes Trust 
for their support during the year and 
their acknowledgement of the volatility 
of this industry. The fact our dividends 
help the Trust make our region a better 
place to live is an important motivator 
for us.

We also thank our staff for their work 
in a rapidly changing market and an 
equally rapidly changing company. It is 
your efforts that enable us to pay the 
dividends to the stakeholder. 

Our board also has worked hard 
prioritising our strategic opportunities 
and ensuring we stay on our course. 
At the start of the year we farewelled 
Alison Gerry and welcomed Nick 
Lewis (Wellington) to our board. We 
can confirm this year Warren McNabb 
(Marlborough) has been reappointed  
for a further term. Thank you all for  
your efforts.
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MARKET 
SUMMARY

Pioneer Energy is embracing 

this next decade of industry 

change. We have implemented 

a number of business changes 

over the last two years to 

improve our market resilience 

and diversify our business 

revenues and risks.
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Our industry is contemplating social and technology 
changes over the next decade that will challenge 
long standing market norms, asset efficiencies and 
productivity. Generation scale, regulated networks and 
market segmentation will all be challenged. Change 
drivers are no longer local access to fuels, but global 
access to consumer technologies. 
 
New Zealand’s electricity market can no longer operate 
in its own paradigms, nor can the industry maintain 
separation between the electricity, transport and heat 
sectors. We have entered a period of supply chain 
convergence and more distributed energy and energy 
management systems. 

Pioneer Energy is embracing this next decade of industry 
change. We have implemented a number of business 
changes over the last two years to improve our market 
resilience and diversify our business revenues and risks.

We have developed specialised market partnerships 
that will prove more adaptive than Pioneer could in its 
own right, and support those partnerships with our core 
expertise. Our product and energy services businesses, 
Energy for Industry and ECOsystems, are now operating 
under the new Pioneer Energy brand and our asset and 
project service teams manage our Southern Generation 
renewables partnership.
 
To grow and prosper in tomorrow’s energy markets, 
you need to get closer to customers and to their 
communities. Pioneer has a proud history of community 
ownership and investment back into our community. 
By acquiring a 51% partnership stake in national retailer 
Pulse Energy, with Buller Electricity, Pioneer has secured 
a stake in customer servicing opportunities, managing 
exponential growth in solar, electric vehicles and storage 
technologies. What an exciting future in front of us.

Key takeouts from Bloomberg  

Energy Outlook 2015 

Solar, solar everywhere

Power to the people 

Renewables rule

Climate peril.
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DIRECTORS’ 
PROFILES

Stuart Heal was CEO of CRT for 
20 years until he and his wife chose 
to move to Cromwell in 2004. 
Since then he has been involved 
in a number of consultancy and 
governance roles. He currently 
chairs the WellSouth Primary Health 
Network, covering all of Otago and 
Southland, the University Bookshop 
(Otago) Ltd and NZ Cricket. He is 
a director of Southern IFS Forestry 
Group, Pulse Energy Ltd and the 
Southern Rural Fire Authority. Stuart 
and his family share ownership of 
Infi nite Energy NZ Ltd which is a 
solar distribution company.

Steve has a career background in 
infrastructure businesses and is 
a graduate of Monash University, 
Melbourne. His past positions include: 
Chief Executive of Queenstown Airport, 
General Manager New Zealand/
Australia at Powerco Limited, General 
Manager at Lyttelton Port Company. 
He is currently the Chief Executive of 
Wellington International Airport.

Chairman,

Appointed Director of 

Pioneer Energy Ltd in July 2007 and 

appointed Chair July 2013

Director,

Appointed a Director of 

Pioneer Energy Ltd in July 2008. 

+ Chairman, Audit Committee

Stuart Heal Steve Sanderson
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Don is a professional director with 
extensive experience in the electrical, 
construction and telecommunications 
industries. He is currently a director of 
New Zealand’s new health and safety 
regulator WorkSafe NZ, a director 
of Wells Group, and on the steering 
committee of the Business Leaders’ 
Health and Safety Forum. Over the 
past 15 years Don has held a number 
of senior executive and governance 
roles in the United States, Asia and 
New Zealand including: Chairman 
and Managing Director of Naylor Love 
Construction, one of New Zealand’s 
largest construction companies; CEO 
Kordia Solutions, a telecommunications 
and broadcasting business covering 
Australia and New Zealand; GM 
Contracting for Northpower; CEO of 
United Gooder; and Vice President of 
Oxbow Power, USA and Phillippines.

Warren has 20 years’ experience in 
advising and investing in infrastructure 
assets, principally in electricity 
generation and distribution. He has 
worked as a commercial lawyer 
in New Zealand and an investment 
banker for Macquarie Bank in New 
Zealand and Canada.

He has Bachelors of Commerce and 
Law from University of Canterbury and 
a Master of Business Administration 
from the University of Hawaii. Over 
the last 10 years, Warren has worked 
as a fi nancial consultant on renewable 
energy projects and investment fund 
establishment, as well as establishing 
Energy3 Limited – a renewable 
energy development company. He 
was previously a director of Energy 
for Industry Limited when it was 
owned by Meridian Energy.

Director,

Appointed a Director of 

Pioneer Energy Ltd in July 2011

+ Health and Safety Committee

Director,

Appointed a Director of 

Pioneer Energy Ltd in July 2013

Don Stock Warren McNabb

A graduate of Lehigh University in 
Bethlehem, Pennsylvania with a 
Mechanical Engineering degree Nick 
initially worked in the commercial 
nuclear power industry in the US 
before co-founding a successful data 
management fi rm. On the sale of 
the business, Nick’s focus turned to 
investment banking in New York at JP 
Morgan and CIBC World Markets for 
close to ten years. During his time on 
Wall Street, he worked on a wide range 
of transactions for clients including 
mergers, acquisitions, divestitures, 
initial public off erings, bond, bank, and 
derivatives. Nick arrived in Wellington 
in 2004 to take-up the role of CEO of 
a smart meter and data management 
technology company. He was the 
founding CEO of the climate change 
website, www.celsias.com.

Director,

Appointed a Director of 

Pioneer Energy Ltd in September 2015.

Nick Lewis
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SAFETY 
MANAGEMENT

Public Safety 
Management System
Pioneer retained certification of its 
Public Safety Management System to 
December 2017 following an interim 
audit by TELARC (an independent 
external auditor that specisalises in 
public safety management). This audit 
result was extremely pleasing. No 
improvements were recommended by 
the auditor which demonstrates the 
maturity of our system.

Senior management visited all sites 
during the year to ensure that sites were 
safe for members of the public. There 
were no incidents involving members of 
the public during the year.

In the coming year, Board members will 
visit selected sites to complete public 
safety inspections.

Lost time Injuries
Pioneer staff had one lost time injury 
- a minor back strain. All learnings 
that could be extracted from incidents 
and near misses have been utilised to 
safeguard against incidents and injuries 
occurring in the future.

ACC
Having achieved Secondary ACC 
Workplace Safety status two years ago, 
Pioneer continued to improve its health 
and safety systems and embedded 
processes. This has contributed to a 
positive result with Pioneer achieving 
Tertiary ACC Workplace Safety 
accreditation in April 2016.
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Providing training to staff 

is important to Pioneer as 

it ensures staff have the 

correct knowledge to do 

their job safely.

Internal Safety Audit
Pioneer Energy completed the second 
year of its internal Health & Safety audit 
system. Through this process many 
minor site and process improvements 
were identified and acted upon. In 
January 2016 the audit system was 
reviewed and an online auditing 
template was created for use in this 
year's audit, promoting consistency  
and efficiency. 

Health & Safety 
Committee
Pioneer Energy’s Health & Safety 
Committee meets monthly. Its members 
consist of a broad range of employees 
from CEO to GM’s to operational staff. 
The purpose of these meetings is to 
facilitate co-operation between all  
levels of staff and to assist in developing 
health and safety standards, rules  
and procedures.

The Committee is currently chaired by 
the GM Contracting Services and has five 
appointed employee representatives. 
The representatives come from the 
following teams:  

• Contracting Services - 3
• Energy Solutions - 1  
• Corporate - 1  
 
All representatives have completed 
a training course and are currently 
completing transition training as a  
result of new legislation and their  
new responsibilities.

Training Competencies
Pioneer Energy continually requires its 
employees to undergo training to ensure 
their knowledge is refreshed and kept 
up to date. Providing training to staff is 
important to Pioneer as it ensures staff 
have the correct knowledge to do their 
job safely. All staff are trained in First Aid 
and Fire Extinction as well as a variety 
of other areas specific to their role.  
Additional training this year included 
hazard management for operational  
staff and periodic inspections of fall 
arrest equipment.

Safety Days
Pioneer Energy holds two dedicated 
Safety Days each year to promote 
the importance of health, safety and 
wellness. These meetings included 
presentations from a Pioneer Board 
member and an Occupational Health 
Nurse. The day’s included a training 
course and quiz on the Pioneer Energy 
Health & Safety Manual, happiness 
exercises, brand engagement, a 
maze exercise with health, safety and 
wellness activities, team building and 
communication exercises. 

These safety days provide an excellent 
opportunity for staff who work in remote 
parts of the country to engage with their 
colleagues thereby improving wellbeing.
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SUSTAINABILITY

“Pioneer Energy is committed 

to managing and reducing its 

greenhouse gas emissions”

The period 1st April 2014 – 31st March 
2015 saw Pioneer’s second CEMARS® 
report in the three year certification 
period, encompassing the now 
amalgamated EFI business which had 
its seventh consecutive year associated 
with the CEMARS® accreditation 
scheme. Our 2015-16 CEMARS® report is 
currently being compiled ready for audit. 
The scheme recognises that Pioneer 
Energy has met the requirements of 
CEMARS® certification having measured 
its greenhouse gas emissions in 
accordance with ISO 14064-1:2006, and 
is committed to managing and reducing 
its greenhouse gas emissions in respect 
of its organisation including corporate 
operations, electricity generation plants, 
on-site energy centres, and related 
energy efficiency solutions.

The energy outputs of Pioneer will 
continue to expand over the coming 
years as the business grows therefore 
growth in emissions is expected, 
Pioneer targets emission intensity 
reductions against the increasing 
EBITDAF and turnover as a measure 
of overall emission performance. This 
is expressed in intensity rather than 
absolute terms. By measuring intensity, 
we maintain measurement continuity 
year on year regardless of events beyond 
our control such as seasonal variations 
in our existing plant portfolio and the 
introduction of any new plant.

This is the second year of reporting 
under the CEMARS® programme for 
Pioneer Energy Limited. An absolute 
reduction in Scope 1 and 2 emissions 
of 3,310.33 tCO2e has been achieved 
against the base year (2013-2014). A 
reduction in emissions intensity (for 
Scope 1, 2 and mandatory Scope 3 
emissions) of 196.09 tCO2e/$M has  
been achieved; based on a 2 year  
rolling average.

The majority of GHG emissions 
recorded for the period relate to the 
generation of heat from coal use 
at the Dunedin Energy Centre and 
Washdyke Energy Centres and remain 
key areas of focus. The ongoing wood 
chip supply agreement to the Dunedin 
Energy Centre continues to displace a 
percentage of coal each year. We have 
further reduced our intensity target 
from last year to 0.1000tCO2e/GJ in 
anticipation of reduced carbon intensity 
with the continued use of wood chip. 

As with previous years an Emissions 
Management Plan has been developed 
that sets out the emission management 
objectives for the 2015-2016 financial 
year and we look forward to the 
challenge of incrementally reducing our 
emissions across the business.

Total Greenhouse  
Gas Emissions by 
Scope (tCO2e)

58,000
2013 -  
2014

2014 -  
2015

60,000

62,000

64,000

66,000

68,000

70,000

72,000

Scope 1

Scope 2

Scope 3 Operational

Scope 4 One Time
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Figure 2 – the Dunedin Energy Centre 

makes up 51% of the operational emissions 

for the year, this is due to the size of 

the operation and the fuel used being 

predominately coal and Washdyke Energy 

Centre making up 20%, again due to the use 

of coal fuel. Auckland District Health (ADHB) 

Cogeneration Plant: being natural gas 

fired made up a further 8% of operational 

emissions. Emissions from corporate 

operations account for less than 1% of  

the annual emissions.

ISO 14064-1:2006

certifi ed
organisation

Reduction projects include:

• Auckland District Health Board (ADHB) Cogeneration Plant (Gas Fired & Diesel   
 Reciprocating Engines) – increased availability of cogeneration plant. 

• Dunedin Energy Centre - The ongoing wood chip supply agreement continues to   
 displace a percentage of coal each year. We have further reduced our intensity   
 target from last year to 0.1000tCO2e/GJ in anticipation of reduced carbon intensity   
 with the continued use of wood chip. 

• Winstone Pulp International (Biomass Fired Heat Plant) – displacement of    
 coal through the use of dried sawdust as a supplementary fuel from our investment   
 in the new dedicated sawdust dryer. This provided an economic alternative fuel   
 and avoided disposal challenges of surplus WPI mill sawdust. 

• Silver Fern Farms (Waste to Energy Plant) - focus on reducing supplementary coal use. 

• Corporate carbon emissions - The investment in a video network application  
 (‘Go To Meeting’) has assisted in reducing intercompany business travel through   
 video conferencing. 

Operational Greenhouse  
Gas Emissions by Site 
(tCO2e)

DEC 51%

WEC 20%

JPNZ 6%

SHEC 8%

BAR 2%

ADHB  8%

WPI  2%

WENZ  1%

SFF  2%
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PEOPLE

Once again it is pleasing 

to report the continued 

growth and expansion of 

Pioneer Energy Limited. 

The Executive Team was strengthened this 
year with the external appointment of a Chief 
Financial Officer, a Chief Operating Officer and 
a General Manager of Contracting Services.  
We were pleased to fill other management 
positions with internal promotions, appointing 
two Regional Contracting Services Managers, a 
Contracting and Performance Manager and four 
supervisory positions.

Three employees transferred location within the 
company to advance their careers and Pioneer’s 
strategic objectives.  

Pioneer has strengthened its performance 
management and associated data with the 
implementation of new software, and  
provided training.

Pioneer’s strategy is to reward its staff fairly and 
equitably using a combination of benchmarked 
salary packages and reward for performance.
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In June 2015 Pioneer purchased the 
assets of ECOsystems Limited with 
staff in Auckland, Wellington and 
Christchurch. This Boosted Pioneer’s 
employee numbers by 11.

In October 2015 Pioneer restructured 
its internal workforce in order to best 
position itself to become a more service 
orientated business. A primary objective 
of this decision was to separate asset 
management from asset maintenance 
and operation. An internal contracting 
division is now contracting its services to 
operate and maintain assets for Pioneer, 
our partners and external parties.

To facilitate this change, an opportunity 
for development of existing staff into 
management roles arose. A number of 
people were promoted demonstrating 
internal capability to ensure Pioneer is 
well placed with future leadership.

In line with our drive to strengthen 
the company’s long term future two 
apprentices were employeed. One is 
undertaking Electrical studies while the 
other is to become a Mechanical Fitter.

Our year end count of  

full, part-time and casual 

employees increased by  

14 to a total of 81. 

Training and career 
path development
Specialist training has been undertaken 
by management across the country 
to strengthen and enhance skills 
regarding effective performance 
management, development of KPI’s and 
objectives setting that are supportive 
of the company’s overall strategy. Clear 
measurement and feedback is essential 
for employees on their expected 
performance, along with measurable key 
performance and behavioural indicators.  
The ability to readily identify promising 
talent within the company and ensure 
the right people are promoted to the 
right positions is the result of this work.
As the company has grown so has the 
opportunity for our staff to train and 
learn and follow a career path within the 
business. A focus for the upcoming year 
is to begin in earnest a support network 
for our aspiring talent. Two staff will 
begin the NZ Diploma in Business studies 
this year, sponsored by the company.

Best places to work 
During 2015 Pioneer Energy staff 
participated in a Best Places to Work 
survey, designed to assess how staff 
viewed Pioneer as a corporate citizen 
and employer. The results identified 
some key areas for improvement 
namely - Communication, performance 
management styles, results and 
celebrating success.

A volunteer group of staff from 
across the country and from different 
divisions and roles has come together 
to work with management and staff to 
investigate, research and find answers  
or solutions with the aim of taking 
Pioneer to the very top of the  
survey results.  
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This year investment 

activities resulted  

in a step change in 

market growth and  

the evolution of  

a new business 

structure  

supported  

by a new  

brand –  

Pioneer  

Energy

These changes were envisaged when 
the 5 year strategy and growth plan 
were approved in early 2015, ensuring 
management, board and shareholder 
were aligned with market acquisition 
opportunities as they emerged. 

PARTNERSHIPS
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Pioneer saw the future potential in Pulse 
Energy a national and NZAX market listed 
retailer looking to secure funding partners 
for their next stage of growth. Together 
with partner, Buller Electricity, Pioneer 
acquired and delisted Pulse Energy creating 
a specialised retail partnership.  

Pioneer acquired a 49% stake in Ecotricity 
a niche retail start-up selling carboNZero® 
accredited products complementing 
Pioneer’s CEMARS® certified renewable 
generation.

Pioneer, with its Southern Generation 
Partners, acquired the Aniwhenua hydro 
station, built in 1986 by Bay of Plenty 
Electricity and connected to the national  
grid and local network.  

Pioneer partnered with international heating 
and cooling specialist Engie Limited to 
secure its foundation Christchurch rebuild 
project with Ngāi Tahu Properties.

1

2

3

4

Pioneer Energy is delivering on its goal of utilising its core 
business to support and service upstream and downstream 
specialist energy services businesses. 

Four new opportunities were secured and managed through 
four new community and New Zealand owned partnerships. 
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The Energy Solutions business once 
again had a strong year of growth 
and continued to add to its capacity 
providing value added services to its  
new and existing customer base.

In the core energy supply business 
growth exceeded budgeted volume by 
25% and revenue grew 157% from the 
previous year. This was achieved by 
the continuing emphasis on account 
managed relationships, delivering high 
levels of customer service specifically in 
the areas of importance to customers. 
This approach has helped differentiate 
Pioneer in its desired market segments 
of Institutional, Industrial, Commercial 
and Rural customers.

During the year Pioneer finalised 
the acquisition of the ECOsystems. 
ECOsystems is a leading provider of 
energy efficiency and management 
services in the commercial sector. This 
was a key component of the Energy 
Solutions drive to add value by way 
of bundled services to its key market 
segments. The combination of energy 
supply and energy efficiency is offering 
a point of difference for Pioneer in the 
competitively priced energy supply 
market. These solutions offer all 
important cost savings with the added, 
and increasingly strategically focused, 
benefit of improving the sustainability 
metrics of our customers.

A reference site for Pioneer’s partnering 
approach is the University of Otago 
where we bundled solutions to meet 
their various strategic challenges 
around energy and sustainability. These 
solutions included Heat, Wood supply, 
Solar Photovoltaics, Electricity supply, 
Electric Vehicle Charging Point together 
with advisory, assistance and consulting 
around their Energy Management needs. 
This highlights Pioneer’s competitive 
advantage against the larger commercial 
energy suppliers where we are able to 
be more nimble and creative in offering 
alternatives and varied responses to 
customer opportunities.

As an organic evolution of the Pioneer 
Energy Solutions division we assumed 
control over the account management 
of, and customer interactions with, 
our heat supply customers. This has 
created a more focused delivery to 
those customers of not only heat 
products but where possible the broad 
range of energy offerings Pioneer can 
supply. Working closely with Asset 
Management and Contracting Services 
we are improving the cross functional 
alignments in order to continue to 
supply this trusted service at or better 
than industry best practices.

Bringing market experience with 

generation to our customers with 

innovative, fit for purpose energy 

supply and complimentary energy 

efficiency services.

ENERGY SALES 
AND SERVICE
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Solar Photovoltaics,  

Universtiy of Otago

The acquisition of an ownership position 
with Pulse Energy gave Pioneer the 
opportunity to focus more intently on 
its commercial and industrial market 
segments allowing Pulse to deliver 
to their strengths in the mass market 
segments. The commercial, industrial 
and institutional sectors will come 
under increased pressure to deliver 
sustainability measures and Pioneer’s 
product assortment and roadmap is 
more suited to delivering this capability 
in the short and long term.

The product roadmap for Pioneer will 
continue to grow with the strategic 
focus of the company as a whole and 
will focus on the four key areas of 
development being Energy Supply, 
Energy Efficiency and Management, 
Smart Grid and Financing. Associated 
with the strategic focus Energy Solutions 
is also committed to the development  
of products aligning with the core 
values of Pioneer being Service, Trust, 
Community and Guardianship. 

We are positive about the coming 
year and look forward to growing our 
knowledge, capability and capacity 
to transform the way our customers 
purchase and use energy to deliver 
operational cost savings and where 
possible deliver sustainability objectives 
for not only Pioneer but its community 
and valued customers. 

Key areas  
of development 

Energy Supply 

Energy Efficiency  

and Management

Smart Grid 

Financing
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ASSET 
MANAGEMENT

Pioneer has under management 

a diversified portfolio of energy 

generation assets with replacement 

value now exceeding $350m  

owned by both Pioneer and  

Partnered businesses. 
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During the year Pioneer established an 
Asset Management division to provide 
asset management services to the asset 
portfolios of Pioneer and our partnered 
businesses. The primary objective for 

Asset Management is to ensure earnings 
from its assets are maximised over the 
life of the asset. This is achieved through 
the provision of the following key 
services:

• Monitoring, analysis and reporting on asset  
 performance against of key performance indicators   
 (including, availability, production and efficiency) 

• Life cycle cost optimisation 

• Proposed solutions to optimise asset performance  

• Planning and coordinating activities with key    
 stakeholders, including asset owners, contractors  
 and regulatory authorities 

• Compliance with the regulatory environment

Pioneer has set a goal of attaining ISO 55000  

accreditation by 2019. The ISO accreditation is  

an independent validation that Pioneer’s Asset  

Management programme is world class.
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CONTRACTING 
SERVICES 

We are striving to make client 

trust and service excellence our 

point of difference, supported by 

process driven quality and good 

safety practices.

Safe, competent,  
multi skilled  
work force 
Contracting services is focused on 
becoming the service provider of choice 
for Pioneer Energy and our partners.  
We are striving to make client trust 
and service excellence our points of 
difference, supported by process driven 
quality and good safety practices.

We are focused on ensuring that all 
health and safety risks are managed by 
identifying and controlling hazards at 
our work sites. Contracting services is 
training staff to work safely and minimise 
risk to themselves, their work mates and 
the public.  

Financial success 
During 2015 Contracting Services 
became a standalone group within 
Pioneer Energy. Split into three regions, 
Northern, Central and Southern, each 
region services thermal and electrical 
generation assets. Each region is 
focused on the budgeted outcomes by 
ensuring cost control and productivity 
is maintained. The wood fuel business 
is now managed within Contracting 
Services, and resources are shared  
when required. 



M A N A G E M E N T  O V E R V I E W

2 8

Projects 
The group focus is to ensure that best 
practice maintenance is applied to all 
assets under contract and providing 
construction services using our skilled 
resource base. 

This year contracting services have 
contributed to the rebuilding of the 
Fraser Power Station in Alexandra, and 
construction of Flat Hill Wind Farm 
in the Bluff. Our thermal plant had a 
number of major refurbishment projects 
completed. These included a total 
thermal oil replacement at WPI, boiler 
grate replacement at the Washdyke 
Sheffield boiler and various smaller 
repairs to plant that ensures continued 
delivery of energy to our clients.

Focus on One  
Pioneer successes
Energy Solutions and Contracting 
Services, working as One Pioneer, 
collaborated on a proposal to procure 
the maintenance and operation contract 
for the Timaru Hospital boilers. Based 
on the feedback received Pioneer’s 
reputation for service excellence was 
a contributing factor in securing this 
contract. The team is now focused on 
identifying spare resource capacity and 
finding new opportunities.

Training for the future 
Contracting Services are committed to 
employing trainees to future proof our 
skills base and provide opportunities in 
our regions. In addition, a number of 
our personnel are undergoing training 
in different skills to achieve a multi 
skilled workforce that will benefit our 
clients with reduced costs and benefit 
Pioneer with improved utilisation. 
We are constantly looking for further 
opportunities to create a more diverse 
work force.

Process driven
To be sustainable in the market, 
Contracting Services are focused on 
process enhancement and ensuring 
standard procedures are implemented 
across out different assets classes.  
In this way we are able to utilise  
our resources across multiple sites  
and for a range of customers  
as required. 
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Renewable

Energy

Cost-effective

The right choice 
in renewable

cost-effective energy



M A N A G E M E N T  O V E R V I E W

3 0

supporting local forest and wood 
processing businesses that also add 
value to their regions and the New 
Zealand economy. Over the next 
three years, we expect the business 
to expand in each of its regional 
hubs servicing Southland, Otago 
and Canterbury customers. 

Pioneer’s CEMARS® certifi cation and 
Bioenergy Association of NZ’s wood 
fuels accreditation complement our 
renewable electricity and energy 
effi  ciency services off erings. They 
ensure our guarantee of product quality 
and service delivery supported by 
our willingness to invest in long term 
customer solutions.

The signing of a new international 
Climate Change accord in Paris late 
2015 signals the need for New Zealand 
to address its growing emissions levels 
and to respond with realistic emission 
reduction targets across the electricity, 
heat and transport sectors. Each sector 
needs to fi nd the lowest cost outcomes 
and naturally seasoned wood chips 
provide a very robust and reliable 
process heating solution that can be 
integrated with existing or new solid 
fuel fi red facilities.         
 
Pioneer Energy’s wood fuels business 
gives our heat and power customers 
the option to lower their carbon and 
greenhouse gas emissions, whilst also 

WOOD 
FUEL

Having developed wood fuelling 

options on all our heat plant sites 

over many years and maintained our 

wood fuel supply chains through a 

period of exceptionally low global 

carbon prices, government and 

customers are now considering how 

bioenergy can help mitigate climate 

change risks. 
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PROJECT 
DEVELOPMENT

Flat Hill Wind 

Turbine, Bluff

Capital works projects have included 
project management and construction 
works associated with the Flat Hill Wind 
Farm near Bluff. Construction of the 
wind farm was carried out under trying 
conditions with sustained periods of high 
wind which hampered the construction 
program. While the wind conditions 
made tower erections difficult it does 
bode well for future production from  
the project.

Other notable projects were, the 
completion of the replacement of the 
Fraser turbine and generator originally 
built in the mid 1950’s along with 
construction of a new powerhouse.

Earlier in the year a significant amount 
of time was spent on the proposed 
Christchurch District Energy Scheme 
in finalising the concept design for an 
energy hub based around a proposed 
new Energy Centre for the Christchurch 
Hospital. While the inclusion of the 
project into the Christchurch District 
Energy Scheme project did not progress, 
the work carried out provided a sound 
basis for the Canterbury District Health 
Board to progress a facility that meets its 
energy needs. 

Another project in Christchurch that 
has been progressed through to the 
construction stage with our partner 
Engie Limited is an energy facility at the 
King Edward Barracks. This is expected 
to be commissioned in 2016.

Pioneer employ a core group of 

professional engineering expertise 

providing technical, project 

management, due diligence and asset 

management support services to 

Pioneer and our Partnered Businesses.



M A N A G E M E N T  O V E R V I E W

3 2

Investigation work continued into a 
number of potential hydro and wind 
opportunities for both Pioneer and 
its partners.  Resource consents were 
granted by both the Central Otago 
District Council and Otago Regional 
Council for the construction of a 5MW 
hydroelectric scheme in the Upper 
Fraser River basin near Alexandra. 
We are currently working with the 
Department of Conservation to 

gain land use concessions for the 
project. During the latter part of the 
year the concept design to develop the 
consented Matiri Hydroelectric Scheme 
was refi ned as part of a business 
case submission.

 

Aniwhenua Hydro Station, 

Bay of Plenty. 
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PIONEER ENERGY   
NEW ZEALAND 
ASSET MAP

Offices

1. Auckland 

2. Wellington 

3. Christchurch

4. Alexandra (Head Office)

Lower South Island

13. Glenorchy Hydro Station 

14. Roaring Meg Hydro Station 

15. Wye Creek Hydro Station

16. Fraser Hydro Station 

17. Falls Hydro Station 

18. Teviot Hydro Scheme 

19. Mt Stuart Wind Farm*

20. Monowai Hydro Station

21. Clyde Hospital Boiler 

22. Southland Energy Centre

23. Silver Fern Farms - Finegand 

24. Dunedin Energy Centre

25. Dunedin Hub - Dunedin 

26. Naseby Hub - Naseby 

27. Washdyke Energy Cluster 

28. Barkers - Geraldine

29. Flat Hill Wind Farm*

North Island

5. Silverstream Landfill Gas Generation

6. Omarunui Landfill Gas Limited Partnership 

7. Winstone Pulp International Heat Plant 

8. Auckland District Health Board Cogen 

9. Aniwhenua Hydro Power Station*

Upper South Island

10. Bio Solids Energy Centre - Christchurch 

11. Christchurch Hub - Christchurch 

12. Nelson Marlborough DHB - Nelson Hospital Boiler
* Southern Generation

Partnership Assets
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Nature of Business
The Group’s business is primarily the generation of electricity, 
owning, operating and developing small hydro power stations, 
wind generation and landfill gas sites and offering energy 
solutions for industrial clients at a range of sites throughout 
New Zealand. The principal objective of the Group is to operate 
as a successful business as defined in section 36 of the Energy 
Companies Act 1992.
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PIONEER ENERGY LIMITED 

DIRECTORS’ STATUTORY REPORT 

Surplus after Tax: 

The Group net surplus after taxation for the year was $5.723 million (2015: $11.653 million). 

Directors’ Fees  

Directors’ fees in respect of the year ended 31 March, 2016 were as follows: 

  Group 
  
S Heal    $66,975 
S Sanderson   $35,444 
A Gerry (resigned: 27 July 2015) $10,944 
D Stock   $35,444 
W McNabb   $35,444 
N Lewis (appointed: 27 July 2015) $24,500 

There were no requests from directors to use Group information received in their capacity as Directors, which could not 
otherwise have been made available to them.  The Group has arranged Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance. 

For and on behalf of the Directors 
    

S Heal   S Sanderson 
Chairman   Director 
Date: 30/05/2016    Date: 30/05/2016 

F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S
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PIONEER ENERGY LIMITED 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

The Directors of Pioneer Energy Limited are pleased to present to shareholders and other interested parties the consolidated 
financial statements for the year ending 31 March, 2016. 

No disclosure has been made in respect of section 211(1)(g) of the Companies Act 1993 following a unanimous decision by 
the shareholders in accordance with section 211(3) of the Act. 

The Consolidated Financial Statements are signed on behalf of the Board by: 

S Heal   S Sanderson 
Chairman   Director 
Date: 30/05/2016  Date: 30/05/2016
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PIONEER ENERGY LIMITED 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

The Directors of Pioneer Energy Limited are pleased to present to shareholders and other interested parties the consolidated 
financial statements for the year ending 31 March, 2016. 

No disclosure has been made in respect of section 211(1)(g) of the Companies Act 1993 following a unanimous decision by 
the shareholders in accordance with section 211(3) of the Act. 

The Consolidated Financial Statements are signed on behalf of the Board by: 

S Heal   S Sanderson 
Chairman   Director 
Date: 30/05/2016  Date: 30/05/2016
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The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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PIONEER ENERGY LIMITED 
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT 
For the Financial Year Ended 31 March, 2016 

Notes 2016 2015   
 $000 $000        

Revenue  2a 79,436 64,997  
Other income  2b 3,998 4,689 

Cost of sales   (48,945) (32,798) 
Employee remuneration  2c (6,120) (4,813) 
Depreciation and amortisation expense  2d (7,485) (7,935) 
Finance costs   (3,353) (3,202) 
Plant and other maintenance costs   (4,162) (4,025) 
Other expenses  2e (5,549) (5,984) 
Share of joint venture net surplus   323 - 

────── ──────
Net Surplus Before Taxation and Gains/(Losses) on Derivatives  8,143 10,929  

Gains/(losses) on derivatives  2f (2,420) 724   
    ────── ──────
Net Surplus Before Taxation   5,723 11,653  

Income tax benefit  3 - - 
────── ──────

Net Surplus After Taxation   $5,723 $11,653  
  ══════ ══════

Attributable to: 
Owners of the Group   5,781 11,679 
Non-controlling interests   (58) (26) 

  ────── ──────
  $5,723 $11,653 
  ══════ ══════

  

PIONEER ENERGY LIMITED 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Financial Year Ended 31 March, 2016 

  
 2016 2015           
 $000 $000            

Net Surplus After Taxation   5,723 11,653   
     
Other Comprehensive Income 

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss: 

Cash Flow Hedges 
Fair value gain/(loss) on interest rate swaps during the year       16 (1,437) (2,245) 
Fair value gain/(loss) on foreign exchange contracts during the year       16 792 (773) 
    ────── ──────
    (645) (3,018) 

  ────── ──────
Total Comprehensive Income After Taxation   $5,078 $8,635   

══════ ══════

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT  
OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the Financial Year Ended 31 March, 2016

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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PIONEER ENERGY LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the Financial Year Ended 31 March, 2016 

Notes 
Ordinary 

Shares 

$000 

Hedging 
Reserve 

$000 

Retained
Earnings

$000 

Attributable
to non-

controlling 
interests

$000 

Total 

$000 

Balance at 1 April, 2014 71,000 1,232 (2,370) - 69,862

Total Comprehensive Income for the year - (3,018) 11,679 (26) 8,635
Payment of Dividends - - (7,000) - (7,000)
Capital contribution -  -  -  744  744 
Balance at 31 March 2015 $71,000 ($1,786) $2,309 $718 $72,241

Total Comprehensive Income for the year - (645) 5,781 (58) 5,078
Payment of Dividends - - (8,627) - (8,627)
Capital contribution - - - - - 
Balance at 31 March 2016 16 $71,000 ($2,431) ($537) 660 $68,692 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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PIONEER ENERGY LIMITED 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  
As at 31 March, 2016 

  
Notes 2016 2015        

   $000 $000         
Current assets 
Cash and cash equivalents  17(a) 2,695 610 
Trade and other receivables  5 11,347 9,354 
Inventories  6 716 1,232 
Other financial assets  7 19 832 
Assets classified as held for sale  10 - 2,410 

────── ──────
  14,777 14,438 

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment  10 92,142 116,200  
Other intangible assets  11 6,459 6,268 
Investment in joint ventures  21 41,573 - 
Other financial assets  7 - 757  

────── ──────
  140,174 123,225  

────── ──────
TOTAL ASSETS   $154,951 $137,663  

  ══════ ══════
Current liabilities
Trade payables  13 1,471 2,065  
Accruals  14 8,259 6,671  
Other financial liabilities  7 2,978 1,786  

────── ──────
  12,708 10,522  
   

Non-current liabilities
Bank borrowings  15 73,250 54,900 
Other financial liabilities  7 301 - 

────── ──────
  73,551 54,900  

────── ──────
Total liabilities   86,259 65,422  

────── ──────
Equity 
Share capital   16 71,000 71,000 
Retained earnings  16 (537) 2,309 
Hedge reserve  16 (2,431) (1,786) 

────── ──────
Equity attributable to the owners of the Group   68,032 71,523 
Equity attributable to the non-controlling interests   660 718 

  ────── ──────
  68,692 72,241  

────── ──────
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY   $154,951 $137,663

══════ ══════

  

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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PIONEER ENERGY LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
For the Financial Year Ended 31 March, 2016 

  
Notes 2016 2015   

         $000 $000             

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers    78,860 64,756 
Income tax refund received   - 122  
Payments to suppliers and employees   (63,337) (44,311) 
Interest paid   (3,353) (3,202) 

────── ──────
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities  17(b) 12,170 17,374 

   
Cash flows from investing activities
Payment for property, plant and equipment   (14,813) (13,208) 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment   23,682 5,102 
Payments for acquisitions   (1,239) - 
Payment for other intangible assets   (10) (897) 
Capital contribution to Joint Ventures   (28,178) - 
Distributions from Joint Ventures   750 - 

────── ──────
Net cash (used in)/provided by investing   (19,808) (9,003) 
activities    

  
Cash flows from financing activities 
Dividend paid   (8,627) (7,000) 
Proceeds (to) from borrowings   18,350 (3,700) 
Capital contribution - non-controlling interest   - 744 

────── ──────
Net cash used in financing activities   9,723 (9,956) 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  2,085 (1,585)  

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of 
the financial year   610 2,195  

────── ──────
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 
financial year   $2,695 $610 
  ══════ ══════  

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.9

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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PIONEER ENERGY LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Financial Year Ended 31 March, 2016 

1.   SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Reporting Entity

Pioneer Energy Limited (PEL, Parent, or the Company) is incorporated and domiciled in New Zealand.  Its principle activities 
relate to the generation of electricity, owning, operating and developing small hydro power stations, wind generation and 
landfill gas sites and offering energy solutions for industrial clients at a range of sites throughout New Zealand.  The principal 
objective of the Company is to operate as a successful business as defined in section 36 of the Energy Companies Act 1992. 
These consolidated financial statements are for the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the Group). 

Pioneer Energy Limited’s consolidated financial statements comply with that Act, the Companies Act 1993 and the Energy 
Companies Act 1992.

Pioneer Energy Limited is 100% owned by the Central Lakes Trust. Accordingly, the Central Lakes Trust is the ultimate 
parent of the Group.  

The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the directors on the 30th May, 2016. 

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in New Zealand 
(“NZ GAAP”).   

The Group is eligible to apply Tier 2 For-profit Accounting Standards (New Zealand equivalents to International 
Financial Reporting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Regime (‘NZ IFRS RDR’)) on the basis that it does not 
have public accountability and is not a large for-profit public sector entity. The Group has elected to report in 
accordance with NZ IFRS RDR and has applied disclosure concessions. 

Basis of Preparation 

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost, except for the revaluation of certain assets and 
liabilities as identified in the following accounting policies.  Cost is based on the fair values of the consideration given in 
exchange for assets. 

Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial information satisfies the 
concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the underlying transactions or other events is 
reported. 

The financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars, rounded to the nearest thousand ($’000).  

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated financial 
statements. 

Critical Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions 

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors are required to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.  The estimates and 
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under 
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements.  Actual results may differ from these 
estimates.   

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis.  Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision 
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S
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PIONEER ENERGY LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Financial Year Ended 31 March, 2016 

1.  SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT). 
The significant judgements, estimates and assumptions made in the preparation of these financial statements are outlined 
below: 

• Impairment Assessment of Generation and Heat Property, Plant and Equipment

At the end of each reporting period the Group assesses whether there is any indication that its assets may be impaired. 
In the event that any such indication exists, the Group shall estimate the recoverable amount of the assets. In the 
current year, to assess whether there was any indication that an assets may be impaired the Group obtained an 
independent valuation using the discounted cash flow model.  

• Depreciation

In determining the appropriate depreciation rate to apply against property, plant and equipment management are 
required to make estimates regarding the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment. 

The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment at the end of each annual reporting 
period. The estimates used by management in determining the depreciation rate may ultimately be different to the 
actual pattern of use.  In the event these estimates differ to the actual pattern of use the depreciation charge recognised 
may be more or less than what would have been charged had this information been available at the time of determining 
the estimate. 

• Intangible Assets

In determining the appropriate amortisation rate to apply against intangible assets management are required to make 
estimates regarding the estimated remaining useful lives and residual values of intangible assets. 

The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of intangible assets at the end of each annual reporting period. The 
estimates used by management in determining the amortisation rate may ultimately be different to the actual pattern of 
use.  In the event these estimates differ to the actual pattern of use the amortisation charge recognised may be more or 
less than what would have been charged had this information been available at the time of determining the estimate. 

• Valuation of electricity derivative financial instruments

The valuation of electricity derivatives relies on an internally developed pricing methodology. The hedge price is 
compared against the publicly available ASX forward hedge price over the hedging period in order to determine a fair 
value of the derivatives. Assumptions that can have a significant impact on the fair value are the publicly available 
forecasted spot price at each grid exit point and the forecasted volume to be delivered, based on an independent 
assessment, where the hedges are variable volume instruments.  

• Valuation of foreign exchange contracts and interest rate swaps

The valuation of foreign exchange contracts and interest rate swaps relies on a mark to market pricing calculation 
carried out by the Bank of New Zealand. Other financial instruments are valued using a discounted cash flow analysis 
based on assumptions supported, where possible, by observable market prices or rates. 

• Borrowing Costs 

Judgement has been applied to calculate the proportion of borrowings related to qualifying assets and the capitalisation 
period. Judgement has also been exercised to determine that borrowing costs that have been expensed are not 
attributable to qualifying assets.  

• Investments in joint ventures 

Southern Generation Limited Partnership, Pulse Energy Alliance Limited Partnership, Christchurch DES Limited 
Partnership and Ecotricity Limited Partnership are limited liability partnerships whose legal form confers separation 
between the parties to the joint arrangement and the company itself. Furthermore, there is no contractual arrangement 
or any other facts and circumstances that indicate that the parties to the joint arrangement have rights to the assets and 
obligations for the liabilities of the joint arrangement.  Accordingly, Southern Generation Limited Partnership, Pulse 
Energy Alliance Limited Partnership, Christchurch DES Limited Partnership and Ecotricity Limited Partnership are 
classified as joint ventures of the Group.  

1 1
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PIONEER ENERGY LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Financial Year Ended 31 March, 2016 

1.  SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT). 

Significant Accounting Policies

The following significant accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation and presentation of the financial 
statements: 

Basis of Consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Group and entities (including structured 
entities) controlled by the Group and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Group: 

• Has power over the investee; 

• Is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and 

• Has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. 

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or 
more of the three elements of control listed above. 

Business Combinations 

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of the business 
combination is measured as the aggregate of the fair values (at the date of exchange) of assets given, liabilities incurred or 
assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. The acquiree’s identifiable 
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under NZ IFRS 3 Business Combinations
are recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date, except for non-current assets (or disposal groups) that are classified 
as held for sale in accordance with NZ IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, which are 
recognised and measured at fair value less costs to sell.  

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the 
business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent 
liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, 
liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess is recognised immediately in 
profit or loss.  

Non-controlling interests that present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity's net 
assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests' proportionate 
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree's identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a 
transaction-by-transaction basis. 

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable in relation to the sale of energy solutions and 
the supply of electricity to customers provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and GST. 

Revenue from rental income is recognised as it is earned on an accrual basis. 

Interest income is recognised on a time proportionate basis using the effective interest method. 

Other Gains and Losses

Net gains or losses on the sale of property plant and equipment are recognised when unconditional title has transferred and it 
is probable that the Group will receive the consideration due.  

Leases 

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the Consolidated Income Statement on a basis representative of the 
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.  

F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S
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PIONEER ENERGY LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
For the Financial Year Ended 31 March, 2016 

1.  SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT). 

Assets held under finance leases are recognised at their fair value or, if lower, at amounts equal to the present value of the 
minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in 
the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as a finance lease obligation. 

Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate 
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly against income, unless they are 
directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised.  
  
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to income on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease. 

Pioneer Energy Limited holds Crown Pastoral Leases with rights of renewal every 33 years in perpetuity.   

Finance Costs 

Includes Interest expense and other expenses directly associated to bank funding.  Interest expense is accrued on a time basis 
using the effective interest method. 

Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that 
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets 
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.  All other borrowing costs are recognised in 
the profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.  The accounting policy for borrowing costs, NZ IAS 23, only 
applies to qualifying assets where the commencement date for capitalisation is on or after 1 April, 2011.  

Taxation 

As Pioneer Energy Limited’s sole shareholder is a charitable organisation and the Companies within the Group were granted 
exemption from Income Tax under Section CB 4(1)(e) of the Income Tax Act 1994 (replaced with Section CW 42(1) of the 
Income Tax Act 2007).  Charitable status was effective from 23 October, 2002. 

Accordingly income earned after 23 October, 2002 is exempt from taxation. 

Goods and Services Tax 

Revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except for 
receivables and payables which are recognised inclusive of GST.   

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash held in banks. 

Financial Instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Group’s Statement of Financial Position when the Group 
becomes a party to contractual provisions of the instrument. 

(i) Financial Assets 

Financial Assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, fair 
value through other comprehensive income and amortised cost. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the 
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. 
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PIONEER ENERGY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
For the Financial Year Ended 31 March, 2016 

1.  SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT). 

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) 

Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss where the financial asset: 

• Has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near future; or 
• Is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual 

pattern of short-term profit-taking; or 
• Is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument. 

The Group has various electricity price hedging agreements for the primary purpose of reducing its exposure to fluctuations in 
electricity spot market prices.  While these financial instruments are subject to risk that market rates may change subsequent 
to acquisition, such changes would generally be offset by opposite effects on the items being hedged.   

Amortised Cost 

Trade and other receivables are classified as ‘amortised cost’. 

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.   A provision for impairment is established when there is objective 
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables.  The 
amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash 
flows, discounted at the effective interest rate.  The amount of the provision is expensed in the Consolidated Income 
Statement. 

Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) 

The Group enters into interest rate swaps to hedge against fluctuations in floating interest rates on certain borrowings and 
foreign exchange forward contracts as a hedge against fluctuations in the cost of capital equipment due to exchange rate 
movements where these are seen as significant. 

Impairment of Financial Assets 

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance 
sheet date. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that as a result of one or more events that occurred 
after the initial recognition of the financial asset the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been impacted. For 
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount 
and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. 

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception 
of trade receivables where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.  When a trade receivable 
is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are 
credited against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in the Income 
Statement. 

(ii) Financial Liabilities  

Trade and Other Payables 

Trade payables and other accounts payable are recognised when the Group becomes obliged to make future payments 
resulting from the purchase of goods and services. 

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the 
effective interest method. 
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PIONEER ENERGY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
For the Financial Year Ended 31 March, 2016 

1.  SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT). 

Borrowings 

Borrowings are recorded initially at fair value, net of transaction costs. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, borrowings are measured at amortised cost with any difference between the initial 
recognised amount and the redemption value being recognised in the Income Statement over the period of the borrowing using 
the effective interest method. 

(iii) Derivative Financial Instruments 

The Group enters into certain derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to movements in the spot price for 
electricity.   The Group also enters into certain derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to movements in the 
foreign exchange rate and interest rates. 

The Group does not hold derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes. 

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently 
remeasured to their fair value at each balance date.  

The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit and loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a 
hedging instrument, in which event, the timing of the recognition in profit and loss depends on the nature of the hedge 
relationship.   

The Group designates electricity derivatives as fair value hedges and hedges of foreign currency forward contracts and interest 
rate swaps are accounted for as cash flow hedges. 

Changes in the fair value of electricity derivatives that are designated as fair value hedges are recorded in profit and loss 
immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged item that are attributable to the hedging risk.  

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of foreign currency forward contracts and interest rate swaps that are hedge 
accounted are designated as cash flow hedges and are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulate as a separate 
component of equity in the hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in 
profit or loss.  Changes in the fair value of the foreign currency forward contracts that are not hedge accounted are recorded in 
the profit and loss.  

Inventories 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

Property, Plant & Equipment 

Cost 

Property, plant and equipment is recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.  Cost 
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets and capitalised borrowing costs.  Where an 
asset is acquired for no cost, or for a nominal cost, it is recognised at fair value at the date of acquisition. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation is provided on straight-line basis for the heat plant assets.  For all other assets, both the diminishing value and 
straight line method have been adopted using the respective rates set out below. 

Expenditure incurred to maintain these assets at full operating capability is charged to the Consolidated Income Statement in 
the period incurred. 
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PIONEER ENERGY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
For the Financial Year Ended 31 March, 2016 

1.  SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT). 

Any capital expenditure incurred subsequent to the commissioning of fixed assets is capitalised to the asset at the time it is 
incurred. 

The cost of internally constructed assets comprises direct labour, materials, transport and overhead apportioned on the basis of 
labour and plant costs. 

The estimated useful lives of the major asset classes have been estimated as follows: 

   Rate Method
Land Nil   
Land improvements 1.5 - 11.4%   DV& SL 
Buildings and civil Assets 2 - 15%  DV& SL 
Computer equipment 4 - 100%  DV& SL 
Furniture & fittings 7.8 - 100%  DV& SL 
Generation plant 1 - 80.4%  DV& SL 
Heat plant 8 - 44%  SL 
Motor vehicles 8 - 21.6%  DV& SL 
Office equipment 7 - 48%  DV& SL 
Other equipment & tools 8 - 67%  DV& SL 

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period. 

Disposal 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or recognised as impaired when no future economic 
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. 

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Consolidated Income Statement in the period the asset is derecognised. 

Assets Classified as Held for Sale 

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale 
transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the asset (or disposal group) is 
available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such asset 
(or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to 
qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification. 

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value less 
costs to sell. 

Intangible Assets 

Intangible Assets Separately Acquired 

Intangible assets acquired separately are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. 
Amortisation is charged on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives, residual values 
and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being 
accounted for on a prospective basis. 

• Computer software  up to 3 years 
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PIONEER ENERGY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
For the Financial Year Ended 31 March, 2016 

1.  SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT). 

Intangible Asset Acquired in a Business Combination 

Finite life intangible assets acquired in a business combination are identified and recognised separately from goodwill where 
they satisfy the definition of an intangible asset and their fair values can be measured reliably. The cost of such intangible 
assets is their fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business 
combination are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as 
intangible assets acquired separately. 

• Customer contract (Heat Supply contract – Bromley, Christchurch)   up to 13 years 
• Rights to Silverstream LFG (Consent to extract gas)  up to 25 years 
• Customer Acquisition (Electricity supply contracts as purchased)  up to 8 years 
• Computer software   up to 15 years 
• Matiri Consent   up to 30 years 

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets excluding Goodwill 

At each balance date or when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable 
amount, the Group reviews the recoverability of the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine 
whether they have suffered an impairment loss.  The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell, 
and value in use.  For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are 
separately identifiable cash flows that are largely independent of the cash flows from other assets or group of assets (cash 
generating units). 

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Consolidated Income Statement, unless the relevant asset is carried at a 
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease. 

Non-financial assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.  A 
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Consolidated Income Statement, unless the relevant asset is 
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation arising from past events, the future sacrifice of economic 
benefits is probable, and the amount of the provision can be measured reliably. 

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at 
reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using 
the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows. 

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the 
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that recovery will be received and the amount of the receivable can 
be measured reliably. 

Employee Benefits 

Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave, long service leave, and 
sick leave when it is probable that settlement will be required and the cost is capable of being measured reliably. 

Provisions made in respect of employee benefits expected to be settled within 12 months are measured at their nominal values 
using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement. 

Provisions made in respect of employee benefits which are not expected to be settled within 12 months are measured as the 
present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made by the Group in respect of services provided by employees up 
to reporting date. 
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PIONEER ENERGY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
For the Financial Year Ended 31 March, 2016 

1.  SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT). 

Cash Flow Statement

Operating activities include cash received from all income sources of the Group and record the cash payments made for the 
supply of goods and services. 
Investing activities are those activities relating to the acquisition and disposal of non-current assets. 

Financing activities comprise the change in equity and debt structure of the Group. 

Investment in Joint Ventures 

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net 
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists 
only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.  

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the 
equity method of accounting, except when the investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale, in which case it is 
accounted for in accordance with NZ IFRS 5. Under the equity method, an investment in a joint venture is initially recognised 
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or 
loss and other comprehensive income of the joint venture. When the Group's share of losses of a joint venture exceeds the 
Group's interest in that joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net 
investment in the joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are 
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the 
joint venture.  

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes a joint 
venture.  On acquisition of the investment in a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's share of 
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the 
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and 
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which 
the investment is acquired.  

When a group entity transacts with a joint venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the 
associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in joint 
venture that are not related to the Group. 

Comparatives 

When the presentation or classification of items is changed, comparative amounts are reclassified unless the reclassification is 
impracticable.   

New financial reporting standards effective in the reporting period 

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except that the Group has adopted the 
following new and amended New Zealand equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS) from 1 April 
2014. 

Impact of accounting standards issued but not yet effective  

A number of new standards and interpretations have been issued but are not yet effective for the current year-end. The 
reported results and financial position of the Group is not expected to change on adoption of these pronouncements as they do 
not result in any changes to the Group’s existing accounting policies. Adoption will, however, result in changes to information 
currently disclosed in the financial statements.  

The Group does not intend to adopt any of the new pronouncements before their effective dates. 
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PIONEER ENERGY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
For the Financial Year Ended 31 March, 2016 

  
 2016 2015           
 $000 $000         

2.  PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS 

(a) Revenue    

Generation of electricity and retail sales   62,760 48,225  
Energy sales   16,676 16,772  

────── ──────
  $79,436 $64,997  

══════ ══════

(b) Other Income 

Other revenue   1,175 721 
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment   2,823 3,968  

────── ──────
  $3,998 $4,689  

══════ ══════

(c) Employee remuneration includes 

Employee remuneration   8,652 6,344  
Re-classified to maintenance or capital work in progress   (2,750) (1,697) 
Contributions to Kiwisaver   218 166 

────── ──────
  $6,120 $4,813  

══════ ══════
The employee remuneration balance includes the key management personnel compensation shown at note 4. 

(d) Depreciation and Amortisation expense  

Depreciation expense   6,684 7,143  
Amortisation expense   801 792  

────── ──────
  $7,485 $7,935  

══════ ══════

(e)  Other Expenses includes: 

The net surplus before tax in the Income Statement has been arrived at after charging the following expenses: 

Audit Fees: 
Audit fees for audit of the financial statements: 
Statutory audit – Deloitte   48 42 
  
Fees for other services:   
  
Other assurance services   8 - 
Other Fees paid to Deloitte by group entities subject to audit (i) 55 88  
    ────── ──────
    111 130  

Operating Lease payments 521 424   

(i)  Other Fees paid to Deloitte relate to the provision of general advisory, tax and valuation services that do not 
impact on the financial statements. 
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PIONEER ENERGY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
For the Financial Year Ended 31 March, 2016 

2.  PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS (CONT.) 
  

 2016 2015           
 $000 $000         

(f) Gains/(Losses) on Derivatives 

Gains/(losses) on electricity hedge contracts  (2,420) 724  
────── ──────

  ($2,420) $724  
  ══════ ══════

3.  TAXATION 

Pioneer Energy Limited was granted charitable tax status effective 23 October, 2002.  All income earned subsequent to 23 
October, 2002 is tax exempt.  

4.  KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION      

The following remuneration (in total) was paid to executives, being the key management personnel: 

  
 2016 2015           
 $000 $000        

    $1,355 $1,172  
    ══════ ══════

  
 2016 2015           
 $000 $000        

5.  TRADE & OTHER RECEIVABLES 

Trade and other receivables    10,785 8,476  
Provision for doubtful debts   (50) (304)  
    ────── ──────
   10,735 8,172  
Prepayments and other receivables   281 113  
Prudential security bond   326 419 
GST refund due   5 650 

────── ──────
 $11,347 $9,354 

  ══════ ══════
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PIONEER ENERGY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
For the Financial Year Ended 31 March, 2016

  
  2016 2015          
  $000 $000  

6.  INVENTORIES 

Consumable   643 1,159 
Carbon Credit Units   73 73 

  ────── ──────
    $716 $1,232 

  ══════ ══════

  
  2016 2015          
  $000 $000  

7.  OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

Financial Assets 

Current 
Electricity hedge contracts (i)   - 832 
Foreign currency forward contracts   19 
    ────── ──────
    19 832 
  
Non-Current 
Electricity hedge contracts (i)   - 757 

────── ──────   
  - 757  

    ────── ──────   
  $19 $1,589 
  ══════ ══════

Financial Liabilities 

Current 
Electricity hedge contracts (i)   528 - 
Foreign currency forward contracts    - 773 
Interest swap contracts (ii)   2,450 1,013    

  ────── ──────
    2,978 1,786 
    ────── ──────    
Non-Current 
Electricity hedge contracts (i)   301 - 

────── ──────   
  301 -  

    ────── ──────   
  $3,279 1,786 
  ══════ ══════

(i) The electricity hedge contracts designated at fair value through the profit or loss (FVTPL) represent gains and losses on 
contracts not designated in an effective hedge relationship. 

(ii)  The interest rate swap contracts and foreign exchange forward contracts are designated as effective cash flow hedges 
carried at fair value. Refer to Note 16 for a reconciliation of the gain/(loss) recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 
and accumulated in the Hedge Reserve. 
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PIONEER ENERGY LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
For the Financial Year Ended 31 March, 2016 
 

 
8.  SUBSIDIARIES AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES 
 
Details of the Group’s main subsidiaries at 31 March are as follows: 
 

   
Ownership interests and 

voting rights 

Name of subsidiary 

Place of incorporation 
(or registration) and 
operation Principal activity 

2016 
% 

2015 
% 

     
Flat Hill Wind Farm Limited (i)  New Zealand Energy Generation - 100 
Energy For Industry Limited New Zealand Non trading Company 100 100 
Pioneer Generation Investment 
Limited 

 
New Zealand 

 
Holding Company 100 100 

Omarunui LFG Generation Limited 
Partnership 

 
New Zealand 

 
Energy Generation 60 60 

 
(i)  Flat Hill Wind Farm Limited was amalgamated into Pioneer Energy Limited during the year. 

 
 

Omarunui LFG Generation Limited Partnership 
 
During November 2014, PGL formed a Limited Partnership, Omarunui LFG Generation Limited Partnership (Omarunui 
LFG). PGL holds a 60% interest in Omarunui LFG.  The total cost to PGL was $1,116,000 and the net assets acquired were 
$1,116,000. Omarunui LFG operates in the energy industry.  

 
 

9.  ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/PARTNERSHIP 
 
EcoSystems 
 
During April 2015 PEL purchased certain assets of Ecosystems Limited for a total consideration of $1.240 million 
 
Analysis of assets and liabilities acquired  
 
Purchase Consideration   
Cash Paid during the year  1,219 
Estimated future payments  21 
  $1,240 
   
Fair value of assets and liabilities arising   
Fixed Assets 
Goodwill (note 11) 
Inventory 
Accounts receivable 
Accounts payable 

 76 
1,631 

 43 
470 

(980) 
  $1,240 
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PIONEER ENERGY LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
For the Financial Year Ended 31 March, 2016 
    
11. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Software 

$000 

Customer 
Contract 

$000 

Silverstream 
Rights 

$000 

Customer 
Acquisition 

$000 

Matiri 
Consent 

$000 

Flat Hill 
Consent 

$000 

Goodwill 

$000 

Total 

$000 

Balance at 31 March, 2014 1,055 527 2,769 2,459 - 650 - 7,460 
Additions 398 - - - 500 - - 898 
Balance at 31 March, 2015 1,453 527 2,769 2,459 500 650 8,358 

Additions 10 - - - - - 1,632 1,642 
Disposals - - - - - (650) - (650) 
Balance at 31 March, 2016 1,463 527 2,769 2,459 500 - 1,632 9,350 

Accumulated Amortisation & 
Impairment 
Balance at 31 March, 2014 (640) (52) (141) (465) - - (1,298) 
Amortisation (257) (41) (110) (384) - - (792) 
Balance at 31 March, 2015 ($897) ($93) ($251) ($849) - - ($2,090) 
Amortisation (253) (41) (110) (376) (21) - (801) 
Balance at 31 March, 2016 ($1,150) ($134) ($361) ($1,225) (21) - ($2,891) 

Carrying Amount
At 31 March, 2015 556 434 2,518 1,610 500 650 - 6,268 
At 31 March, 2016 313 393 2,408 1,234 479 - 1,632 6,459

The Silverstream Rights asset will be fully amortised in 23.5 years.  
The Customer Acquisition asset will be fully amortised in 5.5 years.   
The Customer Contract asset will be fully amortised in 12 years. 

26

PIONEER ENERGY LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
For the Financial Year Ended 31 March, 2016 

12. VALUATION 

During the 2016 year the Group elected to undertake a valuation of its total operating assets and investments 
(which included generation, heat plant and investments in joint ventures) carried at cost in the financial 
statements. The valuation was performed at 31 March 2016 and the assessed value at this date was $148.2 
million relating to generation and heat assets. 

The fair value of the generation and heat assets of $148.2 million was determined using a discounted cash 
flow model.  The valuation was based on the present value of the estimated future cash flows of the assets.  
The valuation was prepared by independent valuers Northington Partners which has the appropriate 
qualifications and experience in valuing generation and heat assets. 

The key assumptions and judgements in the valuation model were: 
• The life of the generation assets is deemed to be 40 years with no residual values. The life of the 

heat assets are based on existing contract lengths with a maximum of 20 years. 
• The WACC for generation is estimated to be between 8.30% and 9.30%, expressed on a post-tax 

nominal basis. The WACC for heat assets is estimated to be between 9.0% and 11.5%, expressed 
on a post-tax nominal basis. 

• General inflation over the life of the project of 2.25% has been assumed. 
• Forecast hedged generation prices are based on output prices using existing hedge contracts. 
• Annual average generation of 206.8 GWh has been assumed. 
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PIONEER ENERGY LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
For the Financial Year Ended 31 March, 2016 

  
2016 2015

     
$000 $000               

13. TRADE PAYABLES 

Trade payables  1,471 2,065  
────── ──────  

  $1,471 $2,065 
══════ ══════

14. ACCRUALS 

Employee benefits  1,148 1,289  
Accrued expenses  7,111 5,382  

────── ──────
  $8,259 $6,671 

  ══════ ══════
  
15. BANK BORROWINGS 

Loan Number
Maturity Date 

Weighted Average 
Interest Rates  2016  2015 

Or Facility Term 2016 2015 $000 $000
BNZ Term Facility 20/12/2017 4.77% 4.66% 27,500 27,500
Cash Advance Facility 20/12/2017 4.77% 4.75% 45,750 27,400 

$73,250 $54,900 

   2016 2015  
$000 $000  

Secured Bank Loan Facility   
Amount Used 73,250 54,900 
Amount Unused 7,250 25,600  

  ────── ──────
$80,500 $80,500  
══════ ══════

The Group has a Facilities Agreement with the Bank of New Zealand that provides a revolving cash 
advance facility with a limit of $52.5m and a term facility of $27.5m.  A bank overdraft facility of 
$500,000 and a visa credit limit of $300,000 are also provided by the Bank of New Zealand. 

The facility term is for a period of three years with an annual option by notice to request an extension 
for a further year.  

The loan, term facility and the cash advance facility are secured by way of a debenture over the 
Group’s assets and undertakings.  The cash advance facility is drawn down as required to cover 
shortfalls in day-to-day operating cash flows.   

The Group has complied with all bank covenants set by the Bank of New Zealand during the year. 

In addition interest rate derivative swap facilities have been entered into.  The maximum aggregated 
interest rate swap limit is $65m, with up to $20m 3years, $20m 5 years and $35m 10 years.  
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PIONEER ENERGY LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
For the Financial Year Ended 31 March, 2016 

  
 2016 2015  
 $000 $000        

16. EQUITY 

Share Capital 

71,000,000 ordinary shares (2015: 71,000,000) (i)  71,000 71,000  
────── ──────  

   $71,000 $71,000  
  ══════ ══════
Retained Earnings 

Balance at beginning of financial year  2,309 (2,370) 
Net surplus after taxation  5,781 11,679  
Dividends paid (ii)  (8,627) (7,000) 
  ────── ──────
Balance at end of financial year  ($537) $2,309 
    ══════ ══════  

Hedge Reserve    
    

Interest Foreign Total 
Rate Exchange  

Swaps Contracts 
$000 $000 $000 

2015      
Balance at beginning of financial year 1,232 - 1,232 
Other comprehensive income gain/(loss) (2,245) (773) (3,018) 
  ────── ────── ──────
Balance at end of financial year ($1,013) ($773) ($1,786) 

══════ ══════ ══════

2016      
Balance at beginning of financial year (1,013) (773) (1,786) 
Other comprehensive income gain/(loss) (1,437) 792 (645) 
  ────── ────── ──────
Balance at end of financial year ($2,450) $19 ($2,431) 

══════ ══════ ══════

Non-controlling interest     

Non-controlling interests arising on the acquisition of 
Omarunui LFG Generation Limited Partnership  718 744 
Share of Net surplus/(deficit) after taxation  (58) (26) 
  ────── ──────
Balance at end of year  660 $718 
  ────── ──────
Closing Equity at end of financial year  $68,692 $72,241  
  ══════ ══════

(i) Ordinary shares are fully paid and carry equal voting and distribution rights. 
(ii) Dividends totalling $8,627,000 were declared and paid during the year to the Central Lakes 

Trust at the combined rate of 12.1510 cents per share (2015: $7,000,000 paid at the rate of 
9.8592 cents per share).  
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PIONEER ENERGY LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
For the Financial Year Ended 31 March, 2016 

17. NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
      
(a) Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and in 
bank.  Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year as shown in the cash flow statements 
is reconciled to the related items in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as follows: 

  
 2016 2015  
 $000 $000        

Cash and cash equivalents 2,695 610  
────── ──────

  $2,695 $610  
  ══════ ══════

(b)  Reconciliation of profit for the period 
 to net cash flows from operating activities 

Net surplus after tax 5,723 11,653  
(Gain)/loss on sale or disposal of property, plant and equipment (2,823) (3,969) 
Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant and equipment 7,485 7,917  
(Gain)/loss on derivative financial instruments 2,420 (724)
Share of JV Net Surplus (323) - 

(Increase)/decrease in assets: 
Trade and other receivables (1,993) (935)  
Inventories 558 (43) 
Taxation receivable  - 122  
Trade payables & accruals 1,123 3,353 

────── ──────
Net cash from operating activities $12,170 $17,374  
  ══════ ══════
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PIONEER ENERGY LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
For the Financial Year Ended 31 March, 2016 

18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

Interest Rate Swap Contracts 

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk as borrowings are at both fixed and floating interest rates.  
The risk is managed by the Group by the use of interest rate swap contracts which the Group has 
designated as cash flow hedges. 

The interest rate swaps settle the difference between the fixed and floating interest rate on a net basis, 
quarterly. All interest rate swap contracts exchanging fixed interest amounts for floating interest amounts 
are designated as cash flow hedges in order to reduce the Group’s cash flow exposure resulting from 
floating interest rate borrowings.  The interest rate swaps and the interest payments on the loans occur 
simultaneously and the amount deferred in equity is recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement over 
the period that the floating rate interest payments on the debt impact the Consolidated Income Statement 

Foreign Currency Contracts

The Group enters into foreign exchange forward contracts in order to manage its exposure to 
fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates on specific transactions.  The contracts are matched 
with future cash outflows of foreign currencies primarily for capital commitments and maintenance 
contracts, and the Group has designated these as cash flow hedges. 

At 31 March 2016, the aggregate amount of losses under forward foreign exchange contracts 
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the cash flow hedging reserve relating 
to these anticipated future purchase transactions is $19,000 (2015: loss $773,000).  

19.  COMMITMENTS 

As at 31 March 2016, there were the following commitments  

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 

2016 2015   
$000 $000        

Commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment  1,002 1,666 
Commitments for a capital contributions to joint ventures  53,510 - 
  ────── ──────  
    $54,512 $1,666  

  ══════ ══════

NON CANCELLABLE OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS            
  

2016 2015   
$000 $000        

Less than one year   1,043 1,052  
One to two years   951 916  
Two to five years   1,006 1,682  
Over five years   590 2,637  

────── ──────  
    $3,590 $6,287  

  ══════ ══════
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PIONEER ENERGY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
For the Financial Year Ended 31 March, 2016 

19. COMMITMENTS (CONT.) 

OTHER NON CANCELLABLE CONTRACTS 

The Group has entered into non-cancellable contracts for the provision of services such as the use of 
electricity system line functions, the supply of metering equipment & data services and operations 
contracts with a range of renewal options.  Details of the commitments under the contracts are as 
follows: 

  
 2016 2015  
 $000 $000    

Less than one year   827 367  
One to two years   396 293  
Two to five years   218 360  
Over five years   - 420  

────── ──────  
   1,441 1,440  

────── ──────
Total non-cancellable operating commitments  $5,031 $7,727 
  ══════ ══════

20. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

The Group has the following contingent liabilities under letters of credit: 

  
 2016 2015  
 $000 $000        

Polson Higgs   360 360 
Gamesa   665 5,260 
  ────── ──────  
    $1,025 $5,620  

══════ ══════

PEL provides a guarantee in favour of Energy Clearing House of $3,500,000 (2015: $3,500,000) in relation 
to security over energy purchases from the New Zealand energy market clearing manager and to Simply 
Energy of $650,000 (2015: $450,000).  They also provide a guarantee in favour of Motor Trade Offices 
Limited of $51,415 (2015: $51,415).  

21. JOINT VENTURES 

Place of incorporation and 
operation

Proportion of ownership interest 
and voting power held by the 

Group
Name of significant Joint Ventures 2016 2015
Southern Generation Limited Partnership New Zealand 50% (50%) - 
Pulse Energy Alliance Limited Partnership New Zealand  51% (50%) - 
Ecotricity Limited Partnership New Zealand 49% (50%) - 
Christchurch DES Limited Partnership New Zealand 50% (50%)
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21.1. Commitments for expenditure 
 
Southern Generation Limited Partnership  
 
 2016 2015 
 $000 $000 
Commitments to contribute funds for the acquisition of property, plant 
and equipment 53,510 - 
 
There are no other capital commitments relating to the Group’s joint ventures at 31 March 2016. 
 
21.2. Contingent Liabilities 
 
There are no contingent liabilities relating to the interests in Southern Generation Limited Partnership and 
Pulse Energy Alliance Limited Partnership. 
!
22.! RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
Pioneer Energy is in the business of retail energy sales.  Retail customers include The Central Lakes 
Trust, and members of Pioneers senior staff.  These transactions are in the normal course of business.   
 
Transactions with key management personnel 
 
During the 2016 year the following transactions were made in the normal course of business; 
 
The Group made purchases of electrical solar equipment totalling $Nil (2015: $47,600) from Infinite 
Energy NZ Ltd of which Stuart Heal is a Director, the amount outstanding at year end is $Nil (2015: 
$Nil).  
 
The Group purchased four Motor Vehicles from EV Imports Ltd totalling $154,541 (2015:$48,800), of 
which Fraser Jonker’s Wife is a Director and Shareholder. The amount outstanding at year end is $Nil 
(2015: $Nil).  
 
The Group purchased electricity from Weld Cone Wind Farm Partnership totalling $98,245 (2015: 
$Nil) of which Warren McNabb is a Partner, and Lulworth Wind Farm Limited totalling $81,193 
(2015: $Nil) of which Warren McNabb is a Director and Shareholder. 
 
Transactions with parent entity 
 
During the current year, dividends of $8,627,000 (2015: $7,000,000) were paid to the Central Lakes 
Trust. There were no other transactions between Pioneer Energy Limited and its Parent during the 
current year. 
 
Transactions with Joint Ventures 
 
Southern Generation Limited Partnership (SGLP) 
Pioneer Energy (PEL) has an agreement to provide asset management, business development and 
contracting services to SGLP.  In addition PEL has an agreement to purchase all of the electricity 
generated by SGLP for certain generating assets over a period of time which is significantly shorter 
than the life of the generating plant. 
 
Pioneer sold the Mt Stuart wind farm ($14.9m) and the Flat Hill wind farm ($15.75m) to SGLP during 
the year. 
 
Ecotricity Limited Partnership (Ecotricity) 
Pioneer Energy has an agreement to provide wholesale electricity to Ecotricity 
 
Christchurch DES Limited Partnership 
Pioneer energy has an agreement to provide project management services to CDEC. 
!
!
!
!
!
!
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Amount of 
transactions 
relating to 

services 
provided to  

($000) 

Amount of 
transactions 
relating to 

services 
received from  

($000) 

Outstanding 
balance at 31 
March 2016 
 Receivable 
(payable) 

($000) 
Southern Generation Limited Partnership 1,092 2,079 (91)
Ecotricity Limited Partnership 406 - -
Christchurch DES Limited Partnership 33 - 33

- There were no transactions with Joint Ventures at 31 March 2015 

Goods and services provides to and from the joint ventures are per contract terms and are unsecured. 

There was no provision for doubtful debts or expenses arising during the period in respect of bad or 
doubtful debts. 

23.  SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Capital Contribution – Southern Generation 
Subsequent to balance date, the Group made a capital contribution of $52.65million to Southern 
Generation Limited Partnership.  The capital contribution was used to fund the acquisition of the 
Aniwhenua Hydro Scheme Asset on 29 April 2016. 

New bank funding  
On 29 April 2016 the Group re-financed its existing debt facility with a Syndicated Bank facility 
provided by with BNZ and ASB.  The new facility of $116million was used to repay existing debt 
facility and fund a portion of the capital contribution to Southern Generation Limited Partnership. 

Redeemable Preference Shares 
On 29 April 2016 the Group issued 25,000,000, $1 redeemable preference shares.  The counterparty is 
Central Lakes Trust.  The shares have a maximum term of 5 years and may be redeemed after three 
years, by mutual agreement. 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
PIONEER ENERGY LIMITED

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Pioneer Energy Limited and its
subsidiaries (‘the Group’) on pages 6 to 32, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2016, and the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

This report is made solely to the company’s shareholders, as a body, in accordance with Section 207B of the 
Companies Act 1993.  Our audit has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s shareholders 
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose.  To the fullest 
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company’s 
shareholders as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.    

Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Board of Directors are responsible on behalf of the company for the preparation and fair presentation of
these consolidated financial statements, in accordance with New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial 
Reporting Standards Reduced Disclosure Regime, and for such internal control as the Board of Directors 
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibilities

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing and International Standards on 
Auditing (New Zealand). Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free 
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates, as well as the overall presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

Our firm carries out other assignments for Pioneer Energy Limited in the areas of other assurance services and 
general advisory, tax and valuation services. These services have not impaired our independence as auditor of 
the Company and Group. In addition to this, partners and employees of our firm deal with Pioneer Energy 
Limited and its subsidiaries on normal terms within the ordinary course of trading activities of the business of 
Pioneer Energy Limited and its subsidiaries.  The firm has no other relationship with, or interest in, Pioneer 
Energy Limited or any of its subsidiaries.  

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements on pages 6 to 32 present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Pioneer Energy Limited and its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2016, and their financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with New Zealand Equivalents to
International Financial Reporting Standards Reduced Disclosure Regime.

Chartered Accountants
30 May 2016
Dunedin, New Zealand
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MP for Invercargil, Sarah 

Dowie offcially opened  

Flat Hill Wind Farm, 2015.

Official opening of Flat Hill 

Wind Farm, Bluff. 2015.
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